
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Monday, 11 October 2021 
 
 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 19 October 2021 
beginning at 

6:15 pm 
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’. The Meeting can be viewed here: 

https://bit.ly/3Dimt2c 

 
 
TO: Councillor Steve Holes (Chair) 
 Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Anne Buckley 
Councillor Tina Campbell 
Councillor Judith Grajewski 
Councillor Wayne Irish 
 

Councillor Adam Manning 
Councillor David Pragnell 
Councillor Tanya Park 
Councillor Bruce Tennent 
 

 
 

Staff Contacts: Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer, 
catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Sarah King, Corporate Director, Support Services (CFO), tel 023 
8068 8011 Email: sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and 
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to 
access committee papers. 
 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1.   Public Participation  
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2021. 
 

3.   Apologies  
 

4.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

5.   Verbal Updates from Members Representing Strategic Risk Management Group 
(SRMG) / Procurement Executive Group (PEG)  
 

6.   Corporate Risk Management Annual Report 2020/21 (Pages 11 - 30) 
 

7.   Action List (Pages 31 - 32) 
 

8.   Cabinet Forward Plan (Pages 33 - 36) 
 

9.   A&R Work Programme (Pages 37 - 38) 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 23 November 2021 at 6:15 pm 

TBC 
 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

2

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 7 September 2021  (6:15 pm – 7:32 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Holes (Chair); Councillors Bourne, Campbell, Grajewski, Irish, 
Manning, Pragnell (from 18.30), Park and Tennent 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Buckley 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

84. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

85. MINUTES 
 
Cllr Grajewski queried the completeness of the minutes regarding the roles 
of the Executive Head of Governance and Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) 
and when appointment would be made.  
 
The Executive Head of Governance explained a full review of resources 
would take place as part of the 2022/23 Internal Audit Planning. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2021 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

86. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

87. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY MONITORING STATEMENT (QTR 1) 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) introduced the item and provided the 
Committee with an update on the progress with the delivery of the 2021/22 
Internal Audit Plan, which was progressing well.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Audit and Resources Committee noted the Internal Audit 
Monitoring Statement for the first quarter of 2021/22. 

3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 

 
88. VERBAL UPDATES FROM MEMBERS REPRESENTING STRATEGIC 

RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP (SRMG) / PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE 
GROUP (PEG) 
 
(a) Procurement Executive Group (PEG) 
 
Councillor Irish reported that the meeting was held on 7 September 2021 
and the following updates were provided: 

 The Procurement action plan – the Procurement Officer provided an 
update on progress with the Action Plan and a timetable for work to 
consider the Government Buying Standards, which included the 
setting up of a working group to focus on how the Government 
Buying Standards can be used when procuring. 

 Procurement Performance Indicators – the Group reviewed the 
performance indicators and noted that some data was incomplete 
and discussed how to better ensure that data provided was timely 
and complete for future meetings. 

 Terms of Reference – the group had reviewed this at the last 
meeting and comments had been considered. A revised version 
was circulated ahead of the meeting and discussed in detail. 
Consideration was given to including some sections that were 
proposed to be removed and, as a result, further amendments were 
accepted. The Monitoring Officer agreed to share the updated 
version with the Group and seek sign off via email by 17 September 
2021 so that the revision can be included in the draft Constitution 
which will shortly be shared with Leaders for comment ahead of 
presentation to Full Council in November 2021 for approval. 

 PEG Annual Report – the annual report for 2020/21 was presented 
and included a summary of the activity that took place during the 
year, the waivers approved and findings from internal audit reviews. 
The Annual Report was approved by the Group.  

 Waivers – The Group reviewed the waivers to date and agreed that 
waivers are an exception. 

 A query which regarded accountability for ensuring compliance with 
contract standing orders arose and the Executive Heads of 
Neighbourhood Services and Governance, who were both present, 
agreed to discuss this with the wider Executive Team.  

 Sustainability – The Climate Change Manager had sent his 
apologies and the Procurement Office provided an update on his 
behalf. Work to progress the climate action plan continued along 
with the development of a Sustainable Procurement Policy. 

 
Cllr Grajewski added that some June and July data was missing from the 
performance indicators and PEG expressed their concerns.  

 
The Executive Head of Governance & Monitoring Officer gave assurances 
that the process for obtaining the information would be amended to ensure 
that it was provided with future agendas. 

4



3 
 

 

 
Councillor Pragnell joined the meeting and was present for the items from 
this point forward. 
 
(b) Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG) 
 
The Executive Head of Governance reported from the meeting held on 22 
July 2021: 

 The Corporate Risk Register had been updated to reflect the new 
Executive Head Structure. 

 The Covid-19 Risk Register had been combined with the Corporate 
Risk Register. 

 The Corporate Risk Register was reviewed, and risks discussed 
with particular discussions around a number of areas across the 
Council experiencing resourcing issues took place.   

 SIMT had met to discuss the impact of the ‘Pingdemic’ on services.  
A new risk was added around the increase on construction costs, 
as a result of Brexit and the pandemic. 

 

(c) Housing Group 

Councillor Campbell reported that the group had met on 23 August and the 
following updates were provided: 

 There were discussions about the 2021 housing programme and 
developments highlighted included the town centre development, 
which was flagged as red due to utility issues, and Parlour, which 
had been behind time as awaiting a response from Historic 
England, which had now been received. It was also highlighted that 
supplies were becoming harder to secure and the costs of supplies 
were increasing. 

 There was some discussion about Romsey Road in terms of 
whether it is necessary that those properties stay as market rentals 
or sold. 

 The Group looked at upcoming sites, including the Post Office, 
which was flagged red due to time scales and budget. 

 The Housing Group looked at housing financial performance, and 
used The Willows, Leah Gardens and Stoneham Park as examples 
– looking at net rent, void costs and arrears. It was reported that all 
properties were performing at target or above, however one of the 
developments had higher than expected void costs and the team 
were working on identifying why that was. 

 The Group also looked at performance reports from Vivid Housing 
on Stoneham and Woodside, which gaged tenant satisfaction and 
found one area of concern was the length of time repairs were 
taking.  
 

5



4 
 

 

Councillor Grajewski raised concerns regarding the length of time repairs 
were taking as she was concerned the service was operating below 
expected levels. She also raised concerns about the possibility of Romsey 
Road being sold rather than kept at market rent. 

The Chief Financial Officer confirmed that there were regular financial 
appraisals to monitor the situation to allow them to choose the best course 
of action for the future. 

Councillor Grajewski also raised questions on the increased cost of 
construction materials and the ongoing impact on housing projects and 
requested there be wider councillor awareness around this due to 
decisions they needed to take. 

The Chief Finance Officer explained that this was regularly discussed 
within the Executive Team and an update had been provided in the 
Members Bulletin. 

Councillor Tennent questioned the financial viability of the 3G pitch that 
would be positioned close to Wyvern School of Technology as he was 
concerned that it would be too close to the school pitch, which could 
impact on its viability.  

The Chief Financial Officer agreed to investigate the financial viability of 
the pitch and email councillors. 
 
Councillor Campbell raised concerns about staffing and requested an 
update to ensure that the Audit and Resources Committee were aware of 
any problems that may arise in the future. 

The Chief Financial Officer agreed that it had been a difficult 18 months 
and that there had been problems, including recruiting drivers, self- 
isolating staff and vacancies, which had meant the need to prioritise 
services. She explained that councillors received quarterly update reports 
to Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel, and that Executive Team meet 
fortnightly to discuss resources as a standing agenda item.  

Councillor Tennent echoed concerns around staffing resources, especially 
the shortage of Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) drivers and refuse 
collections, with added concerns on strike action and whether the demand 
would mean an increase in salaries was necessary.  

It was agreed that there would be an interim update brought to Audit and 
Resources in November. 

Councillor Bourne stated that, in his role as Chair of ELAC, he had written 
to the Chair of Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel (P&P) regarding 
staffing resources and requested that it be added to the P&P Work 
Programme. He confirmed that the P&P Chair had agreed it would be 
reviewed in quarter 4. 
 
(NOTE: Councillor Pragnell joined the meeting at 18.30.) 

6



5 
 

 

 
89. ACTION LIST 

 
The Committee considered the Action List, which set out the recent 
decisions and subsequent actions arising from the Committee.  
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the Action List be noted. 
 

90. CABINET FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Committee considered the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
  
It was AGREED - 
  
That the current Forward Plan be noted. 
 

91. A&R WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee considered its current Work Programme and agreed that 
RIPA would be deferred until after the completion of the External 
Assessment, and a report on the findings of the assessment and any 
action the review highlighted be brought back to the Committee.  
 
Training will be provided on Statement of Accounts as close to the final 
accounts meeting as possible. 
 
Councillor Grajewski requested more information on the performance of 
Places Leisure and the Chief Financial Officer agreed to set out the 
reporting process for this facility.  
  
It was AGREED -  
  
That the Work Programme be noted. 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP 

16 September 2021 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

 19 October 2021 

CABINET 

18 October 2021 

CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 

Report of the Executive Head of Governance 
 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the SRMG & the Audit and Resources Committee: 
(1) considers the Annual Risk Management Report, and; 
(2) note the content of the Risk Management Framework, Terms of Reference 

and Risk Appetite Statement.  
 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 

(1) considers the Annual Risk Management Report,  
(2) approves the Risk Management Framework and Risk Appetite Statement; 

and 
(3) notes the content of the Terms of Reference. 

 

Summary 
 
Risk Management is a key element of the Council’s operational and strategic functioning. 
This report presents to Councillors the Annual Report and asks Cabinet to approve the 
Risk Management Framework (Appendix 1) and Risk Appetite Statement (Appendix 2) and 
notes the Terms of Reference (Appendix 3). 

Statutory Powers 
 
S151 Local Government Act 1972 

 

 

9

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. This report relates to all of the Council’s Corporate Objectives and the 
framework that supports the management of risks to meet those objectives. 
The Risk Appetite supports strategic priorities in certain areas and is designed 
to be flexible in recognition of the Council operating more innovatively and 
dynamically.  

Introduction 

2. The Executive Head of Governance is responsible for the co-ordination of 
Corporate Risk Management. The Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG) 
are responsible for overseeing and monitoring the Council’s response to Risk 
Management.  

3. This Annual Report provides a summary of Risk Management activity during 
2020/21 and also presents the Risk Management Framework (the Policy), 
Risk Appetite Statement and Terms of Reference for SRMG.  

Definition of Risk Management  

4. Risk has been defined as the threat that an event or action will adversely 
affect an organisation’s ability to achieve its objectives and to successfully 
execute its strategies. Risk Management is the process by which risks are 
identified, evaluated and controlled. It is a key element of the framework of 
governance.  

Risk Framework & Risk Appetite  

5. A member of the Audit and Resources Committee is appointed to the 
Strategic Risk Management Group annually and regularly reports 
developments and progress back to the Audit and Resources Committee. The 
Group reviews risk arrangements and advises the Corporate Leadership 
Board on risk issues within the Council and on existing and planned risk 
controls. Risks are reported by use of risk registers. Each service and 
programme of projects is required to update its own register as part of the 
performance management process. These registers are reviewed by service 
managers; project risks are reviewed by project managers with their project 
group and sponsor and overseen by programme managers. A corporate risk 
register exists to record high level risks which affect the work of several units 
or the whole Council, that are of strategic significance or for which further 
Corporate Leadership Board consideration or resource are required.  

6. Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution (Rules and Procedures) contains the 
Council’s Financial Regulations, of which Chapter 4 outlines arrangements for 
risk management and the control of resources. Paragraph 4.2 states “The 
Cabinet is responsible for approving the Council’s policy on risk management 
and for defining the Councillor, staff and committee structure through which 
risk management will be planned and monitored”. The Risk Management 
Framework is attached at Appendix 1 and the Terms of Reference for the 
Strategic Risk Management Group, which forms part of the framework, is 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

attached at Appendix 3. It is recommended that Cabinet approves this Policy 
and note the Terms of Reference.  

7. The risk appetite statement sets the tone for risk management, it details the 
amount and type of risk that the Council is willing to take in order to meet its 
strategic objectives and will support the achievement of these objectives. The 
Risk Appetite Statement is attached at Appendix 2 and it is recommended that 
it is given Cabinet approval.  

Risk Management Developments 2020/21 

8. Service Managers are responsible for managing risks using risk registers that 
are reviewed regularly as part of service performance management. SRMG 
met on 6 occasions during 2020/21 and reviewed the following service risk 
registers:  

 Customer Services 

 Local Area Services 

 Support Services 

 One Horton Heath Project 

 Strategic Planning and Development  

 Country Parks 

 Housing and Regeneration Programmes 

 Specialist Services 

 Arts and Culture 

 Direct Services  

9. In January 2021 a new Executive Head structure with nine executive areas 
was created. Work commenced during the latter part of 2020/21 to realign the 
Service Risk Registers to the new structure. It is planned that during 2021/22, 
the individual Service Risk Registers will be combined to form one operational 
risk register which will allow more visibility of the risks faced by other services 
and opportunities to address new and emerging risks collaboratively.  

10. SRMG also considered the following matters during the year:  

 Insurance  

 Training 

 Audit resources and Audit reports  

 Business Continuity and the Council’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic 

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Procurement  

 Enforcement  

 Health and Safety  

 Fraud risks  

 Business Grant support (Covid-19)  

 Homeworking & staff well-being 

11. The Corporate Risk Register is managed by the Council’s Corporate 
Leadership Board and updated for newly stated risks and ongoing matters on 
a quarterly basis. The register is also reviewed by the SRMG and considered 
at least annually by Cabinet, with Cabinet members being kept appraised of 
corporate and portfolio-related risks throughout the year. 

12. In April 2021 the Strategic Incident Management Team (SIMT), which formed 
in March 2020 in response to the pandemic, created the Covid-19 Risk 
Register to ensure that critical services continue to operate across the 
Borough. This was regularly monitored and discussed by SIMT. The Covid-19 
Risk Register was also monitored by SRMG who discussed the risks 
contained within and sought assurance that risks were being appropriately 
mitigated. Discussion particularly took place around business grant support, 
health and well-being of staff and the pausing of some services.  

Financial Implications 

13. There are no resource requirements associated with this report. Financial 
risks to the Council are included in the Council’s Corporate Risk Register and 
assessed and managed regularly by the Chief Financial Officer, reporting 
Treasury Management and other financial risks regularly to Councillors; 
financial risks of individual decisions are reported in standard paragraphs in 
committee reports. 

14. Appropriate mitigation of financial risks will ensure the public purse is 
appropriately safeguarded and support the achievement of strategic 
objectives.  

Risk Assessment 

15. The Council significantly reduces a number of varied risks by having a robust 
risk management framework in place. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

16. An equal opportunities assessment has not been carried out as service 
delivery is not directly affected by the report, although in determining risks 
individual services will be assessing equalities and diversity implications. 

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

17. Climate change and environmental implications features on the Corporate 
Risk Register and is discussed at each meeting of SRMG. The Council has 
recently appointed a Climate Change Manager and it is planned that this 
officer and the Strategic Planning Lead (Environment) are invited to attend  
future SRMG meetings to discuss risk associated with the Climate Change & 
Environmental Strategy and Action Plan.  

Conclusion 

18. Risk management within the Council continues to be developed in accordance 
with good risk management practice and efforts are being made to ensure 
continuous improvement in risk management processes, as well as to further 
embed risk management awareness into Council business management. The 
practices and framework provide a sound platform for risk management 
throughout the organisation. 

 
JOANNE CASSAR 

EXECUTIVE HEAD OF GOVERNANCE 
Date: 1 September 2021 
Contact Officer: Joanne Cassar  
Tel No: 02380 688015 
e-mail: joanne.cassar@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 3  
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK – September 2021 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

1. Risk is the potential of an action or event to impact on the Council’s achievement 
of objectives and the execution of its strategies.  Risks are things that might 
happen and are therefore different to issues (things that are happening or are 
certain to happen in the future).  Risks may be positive opportunities or negative 
threats.  
 

2. Risk Management is a process that allows individual risk events and overall risk 
to be identified, evaluated and managed proactively, optimising success by 
minimising negative likelihood and impact, and maximising opportunities. Risk 
Management is a key element of the framework of governance.  
 

3. The best formulation for describing a risk is: cause – event – effect: 
 

Cause Unplanned event Effect on objective 

Adverse weather 
may cause … 

… staff to arrive late for 
work… 

…which may have the effect 
of reducing customer service 
standards. 

 

RISK APPETITE 
 

4. Risk Appetite is defined as the level of risk the Council is prepared to accept to 
fulfil its mission and achieve its objectives. Levels of reward and costs of 
managing risks will determine the Council’s Risk Appetite. Risks outside the 
Council’s Risk Appetite will not be tolerated and must be managed (reduced, 
transferred, mitigated etc.). 
 

5. The overall risk appetite of the Council is defined as MODERATE, with varying 
appetite across different objectives and Council activities.   
 

6. The Council’s level of exposure to risk at any time is expressed in risk registers 
by the scoring of risks and the difference between current and target risk score 
(in line with Risk Appetite).   
 

7. Management and understanding of exposure will be achieved by considering and 
reviewing risks and by deploying mitigation controls that treat, tolerate, transfer, 
terminate risks or take opportunities. 
 

8. Reports from the Strategic Risk Management Group to the Executive Leadership 
Team quarterly will show the level of exposure to corporate risks at the time of 
reporting and the degree of difference between exposure and appetite. 
 
 
 

15



FRAMEWORK 
 

9. The risk management framework consists of four areas, which are subject to 
regular scrutiny and review: policy which is implemented by processes which 
are carried out by stakeholders using methods, which leads to a review of 
policy to ensure continuous self-improvement.  The Strategic Risk Management 
Group oversees this entire framework and regulates it as necessary, and the 
Executive Head of Governance (as Chair of SRMG) provides guidance and 
assistance to Councillors and staff. 

 
POLICY 
 

10. The Council is committed to carrying out effective risk management at all levels 
and throughout all of its activities including operational, tactical and strategic 
processes, activities carried out in partnership with other organisations and 
functions carried out by the Council.  Evaluation will ensure that corporate 
objectives are successfully met and that the Council delivers the best possible 
services taking advantage of properly assessed opportunities for the benefit of its 
stakeholders. 
 

11. The Council’s risk management process shall: 

 ensure integration of risk management as a core part of business planning 

 include an effective risk identification, monitoring and review process at 
service, project, programme and corporate level 

 contribute towards sustainable improvements in service performance 

 reduce the number and cost of insurance claims made by and against the 
Council 

 improve the Council’s ability to defend claims against it 

 fully document major risks and their mitigation. 
 

12. The risk profile that the Council faces includes: 

 Strategic risks: threats to the achievement of corporate and strategic 
objectives, unwillingness or inability to adapt to changes in the Council’s 
business environment   

 Operational risks: potential lapse of performance standards, threats to 
achievement of operational objectives  

 Financial risks: risks to achieving a balanced budget, controlling costs 
(including borrowing costs) and achieving projected income levels  

 Reputational risks: Possible adverse perception of the Council by 
stakeholders  

 Failure to deliver statutory functions and meet legal requirements; incidences 
of fraud or corruption (Compliance risks) 

 
13. The Council will ensure that organisational infrastructure exists to ensure 

effective implementation of risk management processes and to ensure effective 
risk control by use of reporting mechanisms including Risk Registers. 
 

16



14. Potential threats to good risk management include: 
 

 Insufficient officer time available to drive risk initiatives 

 A lack of training for staff and Councillors 

 A lack of coordination of parts of the risk management framework 

 Insufficient management oversight of risk and risk processes 

 Lack of integration of risk management in business planning. 
 

15. Therefore, to be effective, this policy must meet the following objectives: 
 

 Risk management must be integrated in the culture of the Council’s 
Councillors and staff across all activities 
 

 Risk management must embody best practice, regular training and 
continuous self-improvement 

 

 Risks must be managed systematically, with Cabinet, Corporate Leadership 
Board, Executive Leadership Team, the Strategic Risk Management Group 
and the Audit and Resources Committee taking responsibility for the risk 
framework. 

 

PROCESS 
 

16. The key risk management process undertaken across the Council is the 
maintenance of the Operational risk register, owned and reviewed by services. 
The Strategic Risk Management Group conducts reviews of specific areas of the 
Operational Risk Register in conjunction with the Corporate Risk Register where 
necessary.  Each of the Council’s service areas and programmes will be 
reviewed by the SRMG at least once annually. The Operational Risk Register 
has been designed to provide complete records of risk including cause, 
ownership, existing controls, mitigation plans, resources required and mitigation 
timetables.  

 
17. The Corporate Risk Register is drafted, owned and reviewed by the Corporate 

Leadership Board as part of the Executive Team and reviewed by the Strategic 
Risk Management Group which may make recommendations (to add, remove or 
amend risks on the register) to the Corporate Leadership Board. 
 

18. SRMG may implement risk training for staff and Councillors to assist 
stakeholders in implementing the Risk Framework. 
 

STAKEHOLDER RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

19. Stakeholders in the context of risk management comprise the following groups: 
 
 
 

17



Stakeholder Group Responsibilities 

Cabinet Overseeing the effective management of 
risk through adoption of policy. 

Audit and Resources Committee 
(ARC) 

Overseeing the effective management of 
risk through assurance that policy is being 
implemented. 

Ward Councillors Considering risks in all decisions via the 
business of committees and panels 

Corporate Leadership Board (with 
input from Executive Heads) 

Producing the Corporate Risk Register 
and forwarding to SRMG; ensuring the 
implementation of policy; integrating risk 
management into the culture (routines, 
processes, values, behaviours) of the 
organisation. 

Strategic Risk Management Group 
(SRMG) 

Monitoring and assuring the 
implementation of the Risk Framework; 
reporting to Audit and Resources 
Committee, Corporate Management Team 
and Cabinet.  See details below. 

Service Heads Maintaining the Operational Risk Register 
for their service as part of business 
planning and reviewing and updating the 
register monthly as part of service 
performance review.  

Service Teams Understanding operational risks including 
service level health and safety issues. 

Programme Boards and Project 
Teams 

Drafting Programme and Project Risk 
Registers and forwarding to SRMG. 

Internal audit Comprehensive independent monitoring 
and reviewing of the Framework and risk 
controls. Risk Registers are used to inform 
the Annual Internal Audit Plan.  

 

METHODS 
 

20. The following methods and resources are available to enable risk management: 
 

 Operational Risk Register: service level register is compiled by Service 
Managers and reviewed as part of performance and business management 
routines. Registers are made available to the Executive Head of Governance 
and SRMG, who review them and may recommend to ELT that risks of a 
higher level be escalated to the Corporate Risk Register in accordance with 
criteria agreed by the SRMG: 

o Very high levels of risk outside risk appetite / target risk score 
o Risks requiring ELT mitigation action 
o Risks of corporate significance. 

 

18



 Programme and Project Risk Registers: drafted and owned by Programme 
and Project Managers, reviewed by Programme and Project Boards and the 
SRMG as for the Operational Risk Register. 

 

 Corporate Risk Register: drafted and owned by Corporate Leadership 
Board and reviewed by the SRMG. The Corporate Risk Register is a 
confidential document. If the Member representing Audit and Resources 
Committee on the SRMG feels that a risk contained on the Corporate Risk 
Register should be referred to other Members of the Audit and Resources 
Committee, the Member should raise and discuss the matter during a 
confidential session of the ARC meeting agenda. 

 

 Internal Audit: provide independent assurance on control issues by the use 
of a comprehensive and fluid Internal Audit Strategic Plan, driven in part by 
the Operational and the Corporate Risk Registers.  The frequency of review is 
determined by the use of a well-developed risk index.  Following such reviews 
management are alerted to risks and asked to record such risks in their risk 
register.  This allows such risks to be addressed and monitored.  

 

 Insurance Management Consultancy: the Council pays for the services of a 
team of local government risk management consultants on occasions when 
external advice is required. 

 

19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
 

 
Eastleigh Borough Council Risk Appetite Statement September 2021 
 

Overall Appetite (September 2021) 
 

MODERATE 

(Risk Appetite (tolerance) range: AVERSE - CAUTIOUS – MODERATE – OPEN – AMBITIOUS) 

 
AVERSE: avoidance of risk and uncertainty, no inherent* risk 
CAUTIOUS: preference for safe options that have a low degree of risk but willing to 
accept/tolerate a degree of risk 
MODERATE: taking a balance approached, accepting/rejecting some risks 
OPEN: prepared to accept greater inherent risk 
AMBITIOUS: eager to be innovative and choose activities that focus on maximising 
opportunities and offering high reward but can carry high residual** risk 
 
*Inherent Risk – the current risk level given to the existing set of controls 
** Residual Risk – the risk level given after mitigating controls are introduced  

 
The Council’s overall attitude towards risk, across all its services, is currently assessed 
as MODERATE.  However given the diverse services provided across a dynamic and 
innovative Council, it is recognised that not one classification is appropriate and that 
some activities will be assessed on their own merit and the classification will therefore 
vary.  
 
Compliance Risk 
Compliance risk is the potential for losses and legal penalties due to failure to comply 
with laws or regulations. The Council is AVERSE to compliance risk. It must comply 
with legal requirements and carry out statutory duties and is entrusted with public funds 
to deliver services to residents. Some of the services of the Council relate to vulnerable 
individuals and families. 
 
Reputational Risk 
Reputational risk refers to the potential for negative publicity, public perception or 
uncontrollable events to have an adverse impact on the Council’s reputation.The 
Council’s brand and reputation is important in providing residents with confidence and 
security, but the Council accepts that some of its activities may be unpopular, or may 
not be fully understood by stakeholders; appetite towards reputational risk is therefore 
OPEN.  The Council is AMBITIOUS in relation to its community leadership to address 
Climate Change. 

 

Discretionary Services Activity 

In discretionary service areas, or for core services for a limited period, the Council will 
adopt an OPEN approach to risk, due to financial constraints and changes in the 
Council’s ways of working; the Council is prepared to accept a small negative impact 
upon its financial position in order to achieve its overall goals, especially when 
achievement of those goals will deliver substantial benefits to residents/businesses 
and/or realise significant longer-term efficiencies. 

 

21



APPENDIX 2 
 

Innovation & Commercial Activity 
The Council’s appetite to risk is more OPEN where it needs to operate more 
innovatively and commercially in order to continue to provide services and achieve 
corporate objectives. The introduction of new ways of working, and the Council’s 
approach to commercial property investment and housing delivery are examples of the 
Council’s more AMBITIOUS appetite for risk; risks are more acceptable here because 
the opportunity for reward is greater; nevertheless robust measures are taken to 
mitigate risk e.g. treasury management. 
 
Health & Safety Risk 
The Council takes safety of residents, staff, and visitors to the borough very seriously 
and is AVERSE to risk in this area.  A range of policies and procedures are in place, as 
well as specific services that promote safety:  e.g. Food Hygiene, Health and Safety 
inspections of businesses, working practices by Direct Services operatives, Community 
Safety and Emergency Planning. 
 
The table below sets out a Risk Appetite scheme for Corporate Plan objectives. 
(Risk Appetite range: AVERSE - CAUTIOUS – MODERATE – OPEN – AMBITIOUS) 

 

 
 

Objective Finance 
 

Compliance Service 
delivery 

Reputation 

Tackling congestion  
 

Moderate Averse Moderate Moderate 

Developing green infrastructure 
 

Moderate Averse Open Open 

Excellent environment for all  
 

Moderate Averse Moderate Moderate 

Minimising waste and managing 
resources 

Moderate Averse Open Ambitious 

Enabling healthier lifestyles / wellbeing Moderate Averse Open Moderate 
Tackling deprivation 
 

Moderate Averse Moderate Moderate 

Increased provision and more diverse 
mix of housing 

Ambitious Averse Ambitious Open 

Ensuring appropriate infrastructure 
including employment land 

Open Averse Moderate Open 

Enabling the right skills and 
employment mix 

Moderate Averse Moderate Moderate 

Reinvigorating town and local centres Open Averse Open Moderate 

22



APPENDIX 3  

STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP  
 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The Strategic Risk Management Group’s Terms of Reference are: 
 

1. ROLE 
 
Develop and maintain a framework, to ensure integration of risk management 
into business planning, to establish an assessment process to enable corporate 
objectives to be met and to promote good risk management practice throughout 
the Council and where relevant, to share this with partner organisations. 
 

2. MEMBERSHIP 
 
SRMG membership of the group includes: 
 

 One Member representative – appointed by the Audit and Resources 
Committee 

 Leader of the Council  

 Executive Head of Governance & Monitoring Officer  

 Chief Internal Auditor or representative 

 Strategic Planning Manager 

 Senior Projects & Programmes Officer 

 Neighbourhood Services representative 

 Safety and Resilience Manager 

 One Local Area Manager 

 Procurement and Insurance Officer 

 Corporate Health and Safety Officer 

 Finance Specialist 

 Climate Change Manager   

 Resource Manager  
 
Other officers and Members may be invited as necessary, depending on the 
agenda items scheduled for each meeting. 
 

3. PROTOCOLS 
 
The group will meet every 8 weeks.  Additional meetings will be held if 
circumstances require at which the following protocols will apply: 

 
1. Agendas for meetings will be drawn up by the Case Management/Democratic 

Services Officer in consultation with the Chair and circulated at least 7 days 
before the meeting. 

 
2. In the absence of the Chair, meetings will be chaired by the most senior 

officer present. 

23



 
3. Minutes will be taken by the Case Management/Democratic Services Officer 

and approved by whoever chaired the meeting before circulation. 
 
4. Email will be the main method of communication outside meetings. 
 
5. These Terms of Reference are reviewed annually and are dated accordingly. 
 

4. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Encourage a culture of risk management across the Council 

 Ensure appropriate risk management is embedded in all business 
processes via the provision of guidance to Councillors and staff 

 Manage and review the risk management framework to achieve continuous 
improvement 

 Ensure effective risk and mitigation reporting structures and systems are 
operational 

 Review service, programme, project, and corporate risks and advise as 
necessary 

 Provide or arrange appropriate Risk Management training for Councillors 
and staff 

 Periodically liaise with our Insurance consultants and external auditors to 
ensure the Council’s risk management framework and risk profile are 
satisfactory 

 Review and update the relevant risk management sections of the Council’s 
Constitution 

 
5. REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS AND RELATIONSHIPS 

 
The flow of risk reporting information is set out below. 
 

24



 
 
Any changes to the corporate risk profile will be reported to Cabinet, with the 
impact on corporate priorities and policy decision-making linked to these 
changes.   
 
Additionally, Internal Audit will notify the SRMG of risks identified during its own 
risk assessment process, as the Chief Internal Auditor is a member of the group. 
 

6. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 
For each risk, the potential impact and likelihood are rated on scales of 1 to 5, 
then the resulting figures are multiplied together and rated such that a rating of 1 
indicates very low risk and 25 indicates the highest level of risk.  
 
The Risk Registers require users to record current risk ratings and ratings 
expected following a defined plan for mitigation.   
 
 
 
 

25



7. COUNCILLORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Elected Councillors are responsible for governing the delivery of services to the 
local community.  Failure to deliver services efficiently and high-level incidents 
and scandals often result in the public questioning the competence of those in 
charge. It often transpires that such failures and scandals could have been 
avoided if proper governance procedures had been operating effectively.  Such 
questions can impact on the public perception of individual Councillors or the 
Council as a whole.  Cabinet members have a responsibility to understand the 
strategic risks that their Council faces, and to decide how these risks should be 
managed.  They should not seek to avoid or delegate this overall responsibility as 
it is key to their stewardship responsibilities.  Cabinet members should: 

 seek implementation of a strategic risk management process as soon as is 
practical;  

 agree on the Councillor and staff structures for planning and monitoring risk 
management across the authority;  

 correctly position risk management as a strategic and operational tool that 
can help Councillor and staff to meet the challenges and demands facing 
them, rather than as a mere compliance exercise;  

 promote the desired mindset and attitude that is essential for successful 
implementation and robust, ongoing risk management processes;  

 view the process as a significant management exercise, with the right level 
of resources committed to implementation of risk policy and risk 
management measures;  

 take a top-down approach, focusing on issues of corporate significance 
rather than a ‘bottom-up’ exercise which would be too large to manage; and  

 aim for continual improvement on a longer-term basis. 

8. KEY TASKS FOR CABINET MEMBERS 

 

Councillors need to determine within existing leadership structures how they will 
plan and monitor the Council’s risk management arrangements.  They should: 

 decide on the structure through which risk management will be led and 
monitored;  

 consider appointing a particular group or committee, such as an audit 
committee, to oversee risk management policy and to provide a focus for 
the process;  

 approve the Council’s policy on risk 
 agree the Council’s risk appetite i.e. the degree to which the Council is 

willing to accept risk;  
 receive reports on risk management and internal control – officers should 

report annually on the effectiveness of the framework, with possibly interim 
reporting as necessary.  

Cabinet Members must support and monitor both implementation and ongoing 
risk management processes.  This includes: 

26



 embracing risk management in a positive way to:  
o drive service and organisational improvement;  
o assist in the achievement of Council’s objectives;  
o ensure that sensible management decisions are taken;  
o minimise the likelihood of things going wrong and their potential 

impact; and  
o provide a framework to meet new challenges. 

 promoting the right management culture on an ongoing basis. Most 
problems that materialise are likely to be people-based and arise through 
lack of proper application of management processes rather than through 
weaknesses in systems. 

27



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE ACTION LIST 

 
MEETING 

DATE 
ITEM TITLE RECOMMENDATION/ACTION CONTACT 

OFFICER/ 
COMMITTEE 

TARGET 
DATE/ 

COMPLETED 

UPDATES 

10/03/2020 6. Internal Audit 
Charter 2020/21 

Review the possibility of obtaining an 
external assessment of compliance with the 
Standards through a reciprocal arrangement 
with another Local Authority. 

Jo Cassar  A reciprocal arrangement 
with another Local 
Authority is currently not 
possible due to resource 
capacity. The Chief 
Internal Auditor (Acting) 
is looking at procuring a 
specialist company to 
carry out this assessment 
and will provide a update 
at the next meeting.  

 7.      

 8.      

 

29

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN: October 2021 to December 2021 

 
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken. 
 
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to: 
 
(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 

larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 

Borough of Eastleigh. 
 
The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework. 
 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

18 October 2021 
 

Yes 

 
Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Policy  
 

Cabinet   18 Oct 2021   
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
consider and approve the 
Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Policy. 

Helen Devereux, 
Property Lawyer /  
 

Yes 

 
Corporate Enforcement Strategy  
 

Cabinet   18 Oct 2021   
 

Approval of an overarching 
Strategy that sets the 
generic approach to the 
Council’s enforcement 
activity.  (Detailed 
approaches and procedures 
are contained in enforcement 
policies for each type of 
enforcement.) 

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager /  
 

31

A
genda Item

 8



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

2 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   18 Oct 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   13 Sep 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

9 December 2021 
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Asset Transfer Policy  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

This document codifies 
previous documents that 
over several years have 
made up the long-standing 
policy on Asset Transfers to 
parish and town councils. 

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

 
 
FOOTNOTES: 
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken. 
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting. 
 
Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Democratic Services Manager 

32



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

3 

Publication Date: 08 October 2021 
 

33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME 

AS AT OCTOBER 2021 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item for Consideration Annual or  
Standing 
item 

Staff/Member 
Attendance 

    

Annual Staffing Matters Annual 
(March from 
2022) 

Head of HR & 
Union 
Representative 

    

October 2021    

 Corporate Risk Annual Report  Jo Cassar 

 Verbal Updates from SRMG/PEG All Mtgs Members 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

 A&R Work Programme   

    

November 
2021 

   

 Annual Audit Letter  EY 

 Annual Governance Statement Annual Jo Cassar 

 Appointment of External Auditor  EY 

 Bad Debt Report  Tom Andrews 

 Hampshire Community Bank Update  Sarah King 

 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 2) 

 Lisa Smy 

 Interim Staffing Report  Sarah King/HR 

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

 A&R Work Programme   

    

January 2022    

 Statement of Accounts  Andy Smith 

 Verbal Updates from SRMG/PEG All Mtgs Members 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

 A&R Work Programme   

    

February 
2022 

   

 Repairs and Renewals Report  Nigel Stephens 

 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 3) 

 Lisa Smy 

35

Agenda Item 9



 Asset Management Strategy Annual L Suatt 

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

 A&R Work Programme   

    

March 2022    

 Verbal Updates from SRMG/PEG All Mtgs Members 

 Internal Audit Charter 2022/23  Lisa Smy 

 Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2022/23  Lisa Smy 

 Property Portfolio Update  L Suatt 

 Staffing Report  Shirley Robbins 
Sukhi Aujla 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

 A&R Work Programme   

    

May 2022 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

 Members 

 

Items to be tabled   

Regulation of Investigating Powers 
Policy 

 Legal Services Manager 

 

36


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Corporate Risk Management Annual Report 2020/21
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	7 Action List
	8 Cabinet Forward Plan
	9 A&R Work Programme

